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IN THE MATTER OF
LEROY GORDON COOPER, JR. a/k/a GORDON COOPER

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-2993. Complaint, Sept. 25, 1979 — Decision, Sept. 25, 1979

This consent order, among other things, requires an individual from Encino, Calif.
engaged in advertising, selling and endorsing a product known, among other
names, as the G.R. Valve, to cease representing, without substantiation, that
installing the G.R. Valve or any substantially similar automobile retrofit
device in a motor vehicle will result in fuel economy improvement. The order
further prohibits respondent from using or providing any endorsement or

. testimonial which has not been properly authorized or which contains
unsubstantiated representations; and bars him from misrepresenting an
endorser’s expertise in a field of knowledge, and the conclusions of tests or
surveys relating to the performance of a product or service. Additionally, the
order requires that advertising disclose any material economic interest in the
sale of a product or service that may exist between endorser and marketer of
such product or service.

Appearances
For the Commission: Laurence M. Kahn.

For the respondent: Murray Lertzman, Beverly Hills, Calif.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal
Trade Commission having reason to believe that Gordon Cooper, an
individual, hereinafter referred to as “respondent,” having violated .
the provisions of the said Act, and it appearing to the Commission
that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public
interest, hereby issues its complaint stating its charges in that
respect as follows:

ParAGrAPH 1. Respondent Gordon Cooper is an individual whose
address is 5011 Woodley Ave., Encino, California and is a former
N.A.S.A. astronaut.

PAR. 2. Respondent, in conjunction with Dan Mar Products, Inc., a
California corporation, RR International, Inc., a Delaware corpora-
tion, C.I. Energy Development, Inc., a California corporation, and
American Consumer, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation, has been and
is now engaged in the marketing and advertising of a product
variously known as the G.R. Valve, the Turbo-Dyne Energy Cham-
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ber, and by other names, (hereinafter “product”) which product is
advertised to be a means of improving fuel economy in automobiles.
Said product is an automobile retrofit device as “automobile retrofit
device” is defined in § 301 of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act
of 1975, 15 U.S.C. 2011. Respondent, in conjunction with the other
above-named parties and in connection with the marketing of said
product, has disseminated, published and distributed and now
disseminates, publishes and distributes advertisements and promo-
tional material for the purpose of promoting the sale of said product.

PAR. 3. One of the means that has been used to market and
advertise said product has been to use a celebrity endorsement of
said product. Respondent has aided the promotion of said product by
providing such endorsement. This endorsement appeared in dissemi-
nated advertisements and other sales promotional materials for said
product. In return for his role in the marketing of said product,
respondent has received remuneration from the manufacturer and
~ distributor of the product. The amount of such remuneration was
and is dependent upon the number of products sold.

Par. 4. In the course and conduct of his said business in
conjunction with the other parties named in Paragraph Two,
respondent has disseminated and caused the dissemination of
certain advertisements for said product through the United States
mail and by various means in or affecting commerce, as “commerce”
is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, including but not
limited to, the insertion of advertisements in magazines and
newspapers with national circulations and the placement of adver-
tisements through television stations with sufficient power to
broadcast across state lines and into the District of Columbia; and
has disseminated and caused the dissemination of advertisements for
said product by various means, including but not limited to the
aforesaid media, for the purpose of inducing and which are likely to
induce, directly or indirectly, the purchase of said product in
commerce.

Par. 5. Among the advertisements and other sales promotional
materials are the materials identified as Exhibits A-H which are
attached hereto. ‘

PARr. 6. Through the use of advertisements referred to in Para-
graph Five and other advertisements and sales promotional materi-
als, respondent, in conjunction with the other parties named in
Paragraph Two, represented and now represents, directly or by
implication, that
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a. the G.R. Valve when installed in a typical automobile will
significantly improve fuel economy;

b. a typical driver can ordinarily obtain, under normal driving
conditions, a fuel economy improvement which will approximate or
equal seven miles per gallon when the G.R. Valve is installed in
his/her automobile;

¢. competent scientific tests for fuel economy of automobiles in
which the G.R. Valve has been installed prove the fuel economy
claims made for the G.R. Valve;

d. Gordon Cooper bears only the relatlonshlp of endorser to the
marketing of said product;

e. Gordon Cooper has the education, training, and knowledge
necessary to qualify h1m as an expert in the field of automotive
engineering;

f. results of consumer usage, as evidenced by consumer testimo-
nials, prove that the G.R. Valve significantly improves fuel economy.

PAr. 7. At the time respondent, in conjunction with the other
parties named in Paragraph Two, made the representations alleged
in Paragraph Six of the complaint, he did not possess and rely upon a
reasonable basis for such representations. Therefore, said advertise-
ments are deceptive, misleading, or unfair.

Par. 8. In truth and in fact, contrary to the representations in
Paragraph Six:

a. the G.R. Valve when installed in a typlcal automobile will not
significantly improve fuel economy;

b. atypical driver cannot ordinarily obtain under normal driving
conditions a fuel economy improvement which will approximate or
equal seven miles per gallon when the G.R. Valve is installed in
his/her automobile;

c. no competent scientific tests for fuel economy of automobiles
in which the G.R. Valve has been installed prove the fuel economy
claims made for the G.R. Valve;

d. Gordon Cooper bears not only the relatlonshlp of endorser to
the marketing of said product, but also bears the relationship of
principal to the marketing of said product which fact is not disclosed
and is material;

e. Gordon Cooper does not have the education, training, and
knowledge to qualify him as an expert in the field of automotive
engineering;

f. results of consumer usage, as evidenced by consumer testimo-
nials, do not prove that the G.R. Valve significantly improves fuel
economy.
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Therefore, said advertisements are deceptive, misleading, or
unfair. ‘

PAr. 9. Exhibits A-H and other advertisements represent, directly
and by implication, that respondent had a reasonable basis for
making, at the time they were made, the representations alleged in
Paragraph Six. In truth and in fact, respondent had no reasonable
basis for such representations. Therefore, said advertisements are
deceptive, misleading, or unfair.

Par. 10. In the course and conduct of his said business, in
conjunction with the other parties named in Paragraph Two, and at
all times mentioned herein, respondent has been, and now is, in
substantial competition in or affecting commerce with corporations,
firms and individuals engaged in the sale of automobile retrofit
devices.

PAr. 11. The use by respondent, in conjunetion with the other
parties named in Paragraph Two, of the aforesaid unfair or deceptive
representations and the dissemination of the aforesaid false adver-
tisements has had, and now has, the capacity and tendency to
mislead members of the consuming public into the erroneous and
mistaken belief that said representations were and are true and into
the purchase of substantial quantities of products sold by respon-
dent, in conjunction with the other parties named in Paragraph Two,
by reason of said erroneous and mistaken belief.

PARr. 12. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondent, as herein
alleged, including the dissemination of the aforesaid false advertise-
ments, were and are all to the prejudice and injury of the public and
of respondent’s competitors, and constituted and now constitute,
unfair methods of competition in or affecting commerce, and unfair
or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce, in violation
of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.



678 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Complaint 94 F.T.C. .
& A
“IT'S A FABT!—I/V&HEASES] B
MILEAGE UP TO 8 MILES | :

PER GALLON.” <. /b,
Says GORDON COOPER Q‘ i

GEMINI ASTRONAUT

“IMPROVES ENGINE
PERFORMANCE,
'REDUCES SMOG EMISSION
AND CLEANS YOUR ENGINE."

{
! |
: !
] 1
1
|
h
i
i
'
'1 .
. e /
. - o o .
. \l ~Trw N-L_t .
t - N
. . . W
P
,
AT .
ol e i
LY e
e
!
N ]
\
'S N



674

r, [ "
AW

et

Conn s, b

ann
UCH
JLY. O
VAP TS

ot

LEROY GORDON COOPER, JR.

T

[l

Pl

COL. GORDUN COGI ER

it Banmseh Adeas

Complaint

.

;‘U[ i k'“L O

jone 60 vaisw vk o g r 1
9 Up 10 1o a1t ot gal-

bon g 10 220 gellara 0 yone—all of whish ¢ uld vuve you ug
103180 ut.ch yourt L) up 3 dimus 6 manih islog.dof 4 —with
©pteeugy diteeonry shed § vgs fol bswll—yens ) tucbful of
ot

w
[t

f.a L hILEAGE, 1S5 GRS
Cot ot Gub VAN 3 4 20l 10w Gatutly » 2wt aie o btk
- wd g P b te e um-un.-,,.
ytiansuat

N P R

¥ 1r0akahing - £a:.nungan A o
4wt of vrabd. 4 0030 ¢ 85¢ yow 6ot b 4 Tl touan s
do w12 e g i 3h e b~ i i eve oty waplccdant

Ad uny oguncrs
ho Gemdantin
gl €
o 1ot b tiat

st v citid @b, ks o a4 grrbeswusy taid @
AT dt Bt nd WL Pt o, P
 pe g o) ki on d savel

i G etk b mnd fuel 10 fue 1e €ylanlies and
P T N ]
A S oot Bg byt b0 s

1 g0 theroi o a0 o Lottt b b,y w0

g3 tmanc o - n bk oy soudl Tt 02358 g
wud abow pin s 0 th accrmmioe, stnd b, |+
o ot bfveney 0

LOOK LIV SIMMEITISAG Lt
TR R A “

$

HOVT L.GES WL Gt ViLVE!
Vit yn, PN

- o B ena matyge W0 AL

vy apew . endigh ..u.u.,,u by

ot deze s 1uvwen i VT VS fer bl

Lo w iy prchare p wnt
w "

~44 GRULLS SUIPBLD VAU 310U

GLCK Ot PRl

TGN vt Dy $12 "rﬂ'.' W gl e

3o

“HE Cae e m by 401 43
w - dhaang yosimee b3 55

2 manab b
[T W TR

o3 mt ey Sowihon

b, won
Py

i s om, b 3%

. uuxm 8%

ey
vyry ma«

et

e e

uE § e ity Bae
b em i Vaa o e

A A e e e

679

Ex. B

ey
5//?/25
faé/ y7/7%

spec L

4




680 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Complaint 94 F.T.C.

Ex.C

It Really Works!

THIS AMAZING DEVICE
CAN INCREASE YOUR GAS MILEAGE

UP T0 8 MILES PER GALLON!

Ssys GORDON COOPER,
Gemini Astronaut

Yos/ Save Gas by the Galion!

Make Your Car Run Better Too!
New Gas Ssver Slips On in Minutes!

If there's one thing an astronaut has no use for,
i{t's a new invention that doesn't do what it's

supposed to do! That's why we asked astronaut

Gordon Cooper to test the G-R GAS SAVER VALVE in

his independent engineering laboratory. Here's what Gordon Cooper

told us the G~R GAS SAVER VALVE would do for any carbureted automobile:

» INCREASE GAS MILEAGE -~ UP_TO 28% MORE!

ACTUALLY . IMPROVE ENGINE PERFORMANCE AT
THE SAME TIME:

//; CLEAN THE ENGINE OF CRIPPLING CARBON DEPOSITS
4 (. WHILE DRIVING!:
~ % REDUCE SMOG EMISSIONS MEASURABLY:

Impressive results? Definitely. .But we are particularly fussy about
our cars. So, Mr. Cooper's results not withstanding, we went to the
Dept. of Industrial Education at Loma Linda University and gave them
& dozen or so G-R GAS SAVER VALVES. We asked them to test this new

/(S
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tnvention in city and highway driving --"use 1t ou different kinds of
cars, big and small -- even trucks -- and report the conclusions, good

or bad. Here's what the Loma Linda Uni/ersity tests confirmed about

the G-R GAS SAVER VALVE:

It Cutg Gas Consumption in Every Car Tested --
Up to 284! i
S———— N .

It Makes the Engine Run More Efficiently!

It Reduces Polluting Exhaust Emissions as
Much as 50%'
e—————————————

Then reports came back from our own "seat of the pants" test. That's
where ordinary drivers like you and me pop a G-R GAS SAVER VALVE into
their car and record the results for themselves.

For examples

"...on my Pontiac Le Mans...mileage increased
from 10 to 27.2...the improvement is phenomenal.”

~Mr. F. v. S.
Newbury Park, Calif.

“,..on my Volkswagen Bus, it's mileage increased
from 18 to 23 miles per gallon...also have better
gtart in the morning." -

-Mr. Otto Geller,
President, Volkswagen Club of America

Ventura, Calif.
we found that a 1966 GMC 66-passenger school bus got 40% better gas
c.ilcage! A pickup truck with camper got 38.2% better mileage! A 1973
Ford got 28.7% better mileage! And so it went. Everybody we heard
from reported a significant increase in gas mileage and often a notice-
able improvement in performance the homent they snapped the G-R GAS
SAVER VALVE on their car!

SLIP IT IN PLACE YOURSELF...IN SECONDS!

By how we were thoroughly convinced that there really was an exciting
and easy way to save big money at the gas pump. We wanted a G-R GAS
SAVER VALVE on every company car as fast as possible! But we still
wondered if installing this fascinating money saver was as simple as it
vag cracked up to be. Instead of going to a mechanic we handed the
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device and its cimple instructions to three people;

l; A young lady who is so mschénically minded she really needed
help opening the hood.

2. A self-admitted fumble-fingers copy chief who shies away
from a pair of pliers.

3. A guy who spends his weekends tinkering with the innards
of his imported English sports car.

Care to guess the outcome of the race?

Frankly, it was a dead heat! (Subtracting the
time it took the young lady to get the 'hood
open). Mechanical skill just isn't required!
Nearly everybody can follow the one-twa-three
step instructions and be saving gas by ‘the
gallon in minutes! (Susan Cooper, Gordon's
lovely wife, popped a G-R GAS SAVER VALVE

into her '74 Vega in a mere 30 secondsf)

BUY THOSE SPECIAL THINGS YOU WANT WITH WHAT YOU SAVE ON GAS!

Now, instead of spiraling gasoline prices stealing money from your pocket
(even on short trips), you'll put the brakes to this money drain! You'll
do it effortlessly in minutes -- and your insatiably thirsty carburetor
will be under control at last! Certainly we all nave plenty of things

to do with our hard-earned money and pouring it into the gas tank isn't

one of them!

FEEL YOUR ENGINE RUN BETTER - AND CLEAN ITSELF T0O!

The G-R GAS SAVER VALVE makes your carburetor work with optimum efficiency
AT ALL SPEFDS, (Most carburetors are really efficient only at about

35 mph.) %t makes your carburetor breathe freely, perfectly mixing,

with alzost computer accuracy, the precise ratio of gas and air needed

at 7uy given split second. Not a drop more gas than necessary ~-- just

7.1 you really need and no more. Better yet, the G-R GAS SAVER VALVE

/7
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makes your engine run so right that many exhauet fumes which used to

pollute’the air around your car are now re-burned ag _valuable fuel!

ORDER NOW ON ouR UNCONDITIONAL MONEY-RACK GUARANTEE!

We want you to put a G-R GaSs SAVER _VALVE

on_your car right away -- before you spend

another unnecessary dollar for gas Your

car is now consuming ravenously.

We want to prove that Gordon Cdoper's iaboratory results, the special
investigation by the staff at Loma Linda University and our own rosﬁlta
are everything we 8ay they are. Uge the order form below...and if for
any reason you don't agree ~- enthusiastically, wholeheartedly - thnt
the G-R GAS SAVER VALVE ig the best idea you've e?er 8een for your car,
gend it back for refund, no questiong asked. Try it for two weeks;
then if vou're not convinceg return it. The G~R GAS SAVER YALVE costas
$15.95. You'll pe amazed how fast it will pay for itpelf -- and start

putting money back into your pocket!

HAPPY CuSTOMERS WRITE..

HRQEFRIEOR VS

-
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Ex. £
,fd 0 TER LALILTCN CO., LTD. SALL KASSI CC.
{7+¢ Yhorehati Drive G.R. Valve
veet Hollywood, CA 90069 One Minute Commercial TV
(215) €52-2394
YipEe AUDTO
CPEy CU COPDCY CCOPER 1. KL, I'm Gordon Cooper. As you may kncw
I vae selected to be one of the Tirs:
SLCy 70CH OUS T0 SEE WCLAN 2, astronauts to explore space due to my

I¥ THE PG WORKING OR A CAR.

HCLDS UP G.R. VALVE, DOESN'T
TETLRE TC IT....

~ Kk DCES GESTURE TO VALVE CULT 4,

20 XCU VALVZ HZLD IN HIS HALD.

clLi w0 CU 2/SHUT, COCIMER'S FACE 5.
ALD VALVE.... )

CAR 6.

1SS, 76 RCLLING FCCTAGE,
PRCFILE

DIIVING DCWR PRITYY ROAD,

<1 pix “XINCREASE AUTO IFILEAGE UP 7.
w20y

C% SUPER TO "IIPROVE a,
SPCRVANCE" AND WIDEN SHOT

LLT.CUIRG CAR ©C PULL AHEAD INTO

A 3/ RZAR TC FRUNT SHOT..ews

CiANIE SUPER-T0 "CLEAN YQUR ENGINE™

ST CAP PULL IN FROKT AKD ZGCIt
17 QN NCU TAIL RIPE FEATURING
LACK CF SIOAE, CHANGE SUPER T0
"2ENUCE Si0C ENMISSIONS & ENGINE

WEARY.

CUT PACK TO COOPER, CU HGLDING
YHhIVE (IK PACKAGE)

10.

11.

extensive enfineering backercund., At
the present time I'm actively heading m
own engineering company, where we are
engaged In the design and tosting orf
products for industry.

The G.R. VALVE I am holding has beer
tested and retested by leading irdezer-
dent laboratories

along with my own tests. And i<i's a
fact.,...this G.R. Valve will inéreaae

your auto nileage

up to twenty eight per cent....

improve your car's performance,

clean your engine.....

aed . ‘
reduce smog emi ssions Jdilengiblecqr,

In short, the G.R. VALVE will saye you
: 2
money...and save precious fuel...whita

helping to ¢lean the alr far nvercara,
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SLCW Z0GE TC CU CUYFE 12. Before I say a system §s “go* I check
1t and rachecl it...ond the G.R. VALVE

is a “"go" system,

CCOrER STERS OU2 OF Shot, 13. I8 the time I'va taken to tell you =lc
FACK FOCUS TO IiLS SUSAK CUOPER
JUEv CLUSING PHE HOOD ON HER about this important technological

SHE QURLS TOWARD CAUERA
JLES A SELF SAPTISFIED SHILE hreakthrough, BRXHITEXSHKLH®

W2 ZOGH NCUsewass

I\‘;.

CCUPER WALKS IKTO SHOT, PUT ARM 14, My wife Susan installed
INVIFE, . PUTS GOR. JALVE
HOCD OF CAR. .. ZEEX

U ©C ACU PRCXAGE CN HOOD OF Ch: 15. the G.R. VALVE on her car.

LERH M

HOTR G END SHCT, EXCU PACKAGZ 16, STATIuk AKNCR., VO.: DAG FOR LOCCAR:

¥ex LIVE SLIDE SUPER AT STATICH
L STICRES,
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Decision and Order i 94 F.T.C.

DEcCISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof, and the respondent having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the Bureau proposed to present to
the Commission for its consideration and which, if issued by the
Commission, would charge respondent with violations of the Federal
Trade Commission Act; and

The respondent and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by
the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid
draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of such agreement is
for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such
complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission’s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Act, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with the
procedure prescribed in Section 2.84 of its Rules, the Commission
hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional
findings, and enters the following order:

1. Respondent Gordon Cooper is an individual whose address is
5011 Woodley Ave., Encino, California.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

ORDER

ParT 1

It is ordered, That respondent Gordon Cooper, an individual, his
agents, representatives, employees, successors and assigns, either
jointly or individually, directly or through any corporation, subsid-
iary, division, or other device, in connection with the advertising,
offering for sale, sale or distribution of the automobile retrofit
device, variously known as the G.R. Valve, the Turbo-Dyne Energy
Chamber, and by other names, or of any other automobile retrofit
device, as “automobile retrofit device” is defined in §301 of the
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Energy Policy and Conservation Act of 1975, 15 U.S.C. 2011, having
substantially similar properties, in or affecting commerce as “com-
merce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith
cease and desist from representing, directly or by implication, that
the automobile retrofit device variously known as the G.R. Valve,
the Turbo-Dyne Energy Chamber, and by other names, or any other
automobile retrofit device having substantially similar properties,
will or may result in fuel economy improvement when installed in
an automobile, truck, recreational vehicle, or other motor vehicle.

ParT II

It is further ordered, That respondent, his agents, representatives,
employees, successors and assigns, either jointly or individually,
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other
device, in connection with the advertising, offering for sale, sale or
distribution of any automobile retrofit device as “automobile retrofit
device” is defined in §301 of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act
of 1975, 15 U.S.C. 2011, in or affecting commerce as “commerce” is
defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease
and desist from representing, directly or by implication, that such
device will or may result in fuel economy improvement when
installed in an automobile, truck, recreational vehicle, or other
motor vehicle unless (1) such representation is true, and (2) at the
time of making such representation, respondent possesses and relies
upon written results of dynamometer testing of such device accord-
ing to the then current urban and highway driving test cycles
established by an agency or department of the United States
government and these results substantiate such representation, and
(3) where the representation of the fuel economy improvement is
expressed in miles per gallon or percentage, all advertising and other
sales promotional materials which contain the representation ex-
pressed in such a way must also contain, in a way that clearly and
conspicuously discloses it, the following disclaimer: “REMINDER: Your
actual fuel saving may be less. It depends on the kind of driving you
do, how you drive and the condition of your car.”

Part II1

It is further ordered, That respondent, his agents, representatives,
employees, successors and assigns, either jointly or individually,
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other
device, in connection with the advertising, offering for sale, sale or
distribution of any product or service in or affecting commerce as
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“commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do
forthwith cease and desist from:

a. representing, directly or by implication, that an endorser of
- such product or service has expertise in a field of knowledge unless
the endorser has the education, training, and knowledge necessary
to be qualified as an expert in that field;

b. using, publishing, or referring to any testimonial or endorse-
ment from any person or organization for such product or service
unless, within the twelve (12) months immediately preceding any
such use, publication or reference, respondent has obtained from
that person or organization an express written and dated authoriza-
tion for such use, publication, or reference;

c. failing to disclose a material connection, where one exists,
between an endorser of such product or service and respondent. A
“material” connection shall mean, for purposes of this order, any
direct or indirect economic interest in the sale of the product or
service which is the subject of this endorsement other than (1) a
fixed sum payment for the endorsement, all of which is paid before
any advertisement containing the endorsement is disseminated, or
(2) payment for the endorsement which is directly related to the
extent of the dissemination of advertising containing it;

d. representing, directly or by implication, any performance
characteristic of such product or service unless (1) at the time of
making the representation, respondent possessed and relied upon
competent and reliable scientific tests substantiating the representa-
tion, and (2) respondent possesses a written test report which
describes both test procedures and test results. A competent and
reliable “scientific test” is one in which one or more persons,
qualified by professional training, education and experience, formu-
late and conduct a test and evaluate its results in an objective
manner using testing procedures which are generally accepted in the
profession to attain valid and reliable results. The test may be
conducted or approved by (a) a reputable and reliable organization
which conducts such tests as one of its principal functions, (b) an
agency or department of the government of the United States, or (c)
persons employed or retained by respondent if they are qualified (as
defined above in this paragraph) and conduct and evaluate the test
in an objective manner;

e. misrepresenting in any manner the purpose, content, or
conclusion of any test or survey pertaining to such product or
service;

f. misrepresenting in any manner either consumer preference for
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such product or service or the results obtained by consumer usage of
such product or service;

g. misrepresenting in any manner the performance, efficacy,
capacity, or usefulness of such product or service.

Part IV

It is further ordered, That respondent, his agents, representatives,
employees, successors and assigns, either jointly or individually,
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division or other
device in connection with the advertising, offering for sale, distribu-
tion or sale of any product or service in or affecting commerce, as
“commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do
forthwith cease and desist from: '

1. Providing an endorsement which relates directly or by impli-
cation to the performance or efficacy of such product or service, or
which refers to any characteristic, property, use, or result of use of
such product or service, unless:

a. when respondent’s endorsement pertains to subject matter
falling within respondent’s area of expertise, at the time of the first
dissemination of such endorsement, respondent possesses and relies
upon competent and reliable scientific evidence to substantiate any
representation made directly or by implication in the endorsement,
or

b. in all other cases, at the time of the first dissemination of such
endorsement, respondent has made a reasonable inquiry into the
truthfulness of his endorsement, and possesses and relies upon
information resulting from such inquiry which substantiates any
representation made directly or by implication in the endorsement.
“Reasonable inquiry” shall be defined as follows:

(1) obtaining information from at least two competent and reliable
sources independent of the advertiser and any other party with an
economic interest in the sale of the product or service which is the
subject of the endorsement; or

(2) obtaining information from the advertiser or from other parties
with an economic interest in the product or service which is the
subject of the endorsement and having such information indepen-
dently evaluated by at least two competent and reliable sources.

2. Failing to disclose a material connection, where one exists,
between an endorser of such product or service and its advertiser(s).
A “material” connection shall mean, for purposes of this order, any
direct or indirect economic interest in the sale of the product or
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service which is the subject of this endorsement other than (1) a
fixed sum payment for the endorsement all of which is paid before
any advertisement containing the endorsement is disseminated, or
(2) payment for the endorsement which is directly related to the
extent of the dissemination of advertising containing it.

PaArRT V

It is further ordered, That respondent, his agents, representatives,
employees, successors and assigns, either jointly or individually,
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other
device, in connection with the advertising, offering for sale, sale or
distribution of any product or service in or affecting commerce, as
“commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do
forthwith cease and desist from failing to maintain the following
accurate records which may be inspected by Commission staff
members upon fifteen (15) days’ notice: copies of and dissemination
schedules for all advertisements, sales promotional materials, and
post-purchase materials; documents authorizing use, publication, or
reference to testimonials or endorsements; documents which sub-
stantiate or which contradict any claim which is a part of the
advertising, sales promotional material, or post-purchase materials
disseminated by respondent directly or through any business entity.
Such records shall be retained by respondent for a period of three (3)
years from the last date any such advertising, sales promotional, or
post-purchase materials were disseminated.

Part VI

1t is further ordered, That respondent promptly notify the Commis-
sion of the discontinuance of his present business or employment. In
addition, for a period of ten years from the effective date of this
order, the respondent shall promptly notify the Commission of each
affiliation with a new business or employment where he is responsi-
ble, directly or, by his delegation, through any employee or agent, for
the dissemination or approval of any advertising claim relating to
any product or service. Each such notice shall include the respon-
dent’s new business address and a statement of the nature of the
business or employment in which the respondent is newly engaged
as well as a description of respondent’s duties and responsibilities in
connection with the business or employment. The terms of this
paragraph shall not affect any other obligation arising under this
order. v
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Part VII

It is further ordered, That the respondent shall within sixty (60)
days after service upon him of this order file with the Commission a
report, in writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in
which he has complied with this order.



700 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Interlocutory Order

94 F.T.C.

IN THE MATTER OF

HASTINGS MANUFACTURING COMPANY

Docket 4437

ORDER DENYING F

On September 6
ings Manufactur’
rebrief certain i
proceeding. On
order directir
purportedly bear’
Commission’s P
ery in conne
to reopen
40637 (Jy
the discon.
materially assis...
reopen this proceeding.

Respondent’s arguments re,. ’

Freedom of Information Act
presented to the Commission *

the Commission notes that itr

on respondent’s separate '
accordance with Rule 4 -
Practice (16 CFR 4.11(a)("

It is ordered That res’
motion for discovery br

t If the Commission decides to-
in accordance with Rule 3.72(b)X2) ot ..

* Compulsory discovery was likewise
aC ission decision to duct a new ..

elocutc

~~er, Oct. 13, 1979

™UCTION OF

)

his

£ an

nents

a. The

/ discov-

- whether

' /.R. 40635,
icluded that
elay, without
of whether to

ights under the

are not properly

¢ motion. However,
#ill be ruling shortly
aation Act appeal in
/ommission’s Rules of

R ~..._lanufacturing Company’s

. will conduct any y evidentiary hearing
10635, 40637 (July 12, 1979).

2 predecessor rule, 16 CFR 3.72(b)2)(1979), prior to




AMERICAN MEDICAL ASSOC., ET AL. 701
701 : Complaint

IN THE MATTER OF
THE AMERICAN MEDICAL ASSOCIATION, ET AL.

FINAL ORDER, OPINION, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED
VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 9064 Complaint, Dec. 1.9. 1975 — Final Order, Oct. 12, 1979

This order, among other things, requires a Chicago, 111. medical association to cease
engaging in any action that would restrict its members’ solicitation of
patients by advertising, submission of bids, or otherwise; interfere with the
amount or form of compensation exchanged for a member’s professional
services; characterize as unethical the use of close panel or other health care
delivery plans that limit patient’s choice of a physician; or characterize as
unethical the participation by non-physicians in the ownership or manage-
ment of health care organizations that provide physical services. The
American Medical Association (“AMA”) is further required to mail to each of
its members a letter setting forth the terms of the order; amend its Principles

of Medical Ethics and the Judicial Council’s Opinions and Reports to conform
with those terms; and publish the revised documents in specified medical
journals. Additionally, AMA is required to terminate, for one year, all ties
with any medical society that engages in prohibited conduct.

Appearances

For the Commission: L. Barry Costilo, George J. Wright, Daniel R.
Barney, Arthur N. Lerner and Ann Malester. '

For the respondents: Newton N. Minow, Jack R. Bierig and Robert
E. Youle, Sidley & Austin, Chicago, Il1. for respondent The American
Medical Association, Bernard D. Hirsh and B.J. Anderson, Chicago,
T, Of Counsel, American Medical Association and Grant N.
Nickerson, William J. Doyle and Linda L. Randell, Wiggin & Dana,
New Haven, Conn. for respondents The Connecticut State Medical
Society and The New Haven County Medical Association, Inc.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
respondents The American Medical Association, The Connecticut
State Medical Society, and The New Haven County Medical Associa-
tion, (“AMA”, “CSMS”, and “NHCMA”, respectively), have violated
and are violating Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
and that this proceeding is in the public interest, issues this
complaint.

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent American Medical Association
(“AMA”) is a non-profit Illinois corporation with its principal place
of business at 535 North Dearborn St., Chicago, Illinois. Its member-
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ship consists of approximately 170,000 individual medical doctors,
most of whom are members of state and local medical societies,
including CSMS and NHCMA. AMA’s affairs, including those

- complained of, are directed by delegates from state medical societies,
including CSMS.

PARr. 2. Respondent Connecticut State Medical Society (“CSMS”) is
a non-profit Connecticut corporation with its principal place of
business at 160 St. Ronan St., New Haven, Connecticut. CSMS is a
constituent society of AMA. Delegates from CSMS participate in
directing the activities of AMA, including those complained of.
CSMS has approximately 4400 medical doctor members. [2]

PAR. 3. Respondent New Haven County Medical Association, Inc.
(“NHCMA”) is a non-profit Connecticut corporation with its princi-
pal place of business at 362 Whitney Ave., New Haven, Connecticut.
NHCMA is a component society of CSMS. Delegates from NHCMA
participate in directing the affairs of CSMS, including those com-
plained of. NHCMA has approximately 1200 medical doctor mem-
bers, which members direct the affairs of NHCMA, including those
complained of.

PAR. 4. Most members of respondents are engaged in the business
of providing medical care for a fee. In 1974, the fees earned by such
physicians exceeded one billion dollars.

PAR. 5. Members of AMA are located in every state. In the conduct
of their business, members of AMA and members of CSMS and
NHCMA:

(A) Receive and treat patients from other states and countries;

(B) Receive substantial sums of money from the federal govern-
ment and from private insurers for rendering medical services,
which money flows across state lines;

(C) Prescribe medicines which are shipped in interstate commerce;

(D) Act in continuing association and cooperation with state and
county medical associations, and with individual doctors, in every
state, in furthering the agreements described below, in the course of
which association and co-operation they use the mails and other
media of interstate commerce;

As a result of which conduct, the acts and practices of respondents
complained of are in or affect interstate commerce, within the
meaning of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

PAR. 6. Respondents and others have agreed to prevent or hinder
ompetition between medical doctors. This agreement has included
igreements to prevent or hinder their members from:
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. (A) Soliciting business, by advertising or otherwise; [3]
(B) Engaging in price competition; and
(C) Otherwise engaging in competitive practices.

Par. 7. Respondents and others have:

(A) Caused the agreements described above to be published and
circulated in a publication called the Principles of Medical Ethics,

(B) Abided by the restrictions contained in the Principles of
Medical Ethics; and ‘

(C) Enforced, and have the power to enforce, adherence to the
restrictions contained in the Principles of Medical Ethics.

PAR. 8. As a result of the acts and practices alleged above:

(A) Prices of physician services have been stabilized, fixed, or
otherwise interfered with;

(B) Competition between medical doctors in the provision of such
services has been hindered, restrained, foreclosed and frustrated;
and .

(C) Consumers have been deprived of information pertinent to the
selection of a physician and of the benefits of competition.

PARr. 9. The acts, practices and methods of competition described
above are unfair and constitute violations of Section 5(a) of the
Federal Trade Commission Act.

MEMORANDUM OF CHAIRMAN PERTSCHUK IN RESPONSE TO
MorTioNs For His RecusaL N THIS PROCEEDING

ApriL 18, 1979

Respondents American Medical Association, Connecticut State
Medical Society, and New Haven County Medical Association have
filed motions asking that I withdraw from this proceeding, or that
the Commission disqualify me from further participation. For the
reasons stated below, I believe my participation in this case is proper
and decline to recuse myself.

The ground for disqualification asserted by respondents is that in
three specified instances—testimony to Congress and speeches
before the American Enterprise Institute and the Consumer Assem-
bly—my remarks reflected prejudgment of “key issues in the case,”
or gave the appearance of such prejudgment. In {2] fact, I have not,
in advance of an appropriate consideration of the record, reached
any determination on the specific issues involved in this case, nor do
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I believe that my public statements created an appearance of such
prejudgment.

In each instance in which a court has disqualified an agency
decisionmaker, that action has been based on comments showing
what would appear to a disinterested observer as a viewpoint on
specific controverted factual issues (e.g, American Cyanamid Co. v.
FTC, 363 F.2d 757, 767 (6th Cir. 1966)), or the ultimate issue of
liability (e.g., Texaco, Inc. v. FTC, 336 F.2d 754, 760 (D.C. Cir. 1964),
vacated on other grounds, 381 U.S. 739 (1965); Cinderella Career &
Finishing Schools, Inc. v. FTC, 425 F.2d 583, 590 (D.C. Cir. 1970)) in a
pending adjudicative matter.! My comments, when considered in
context (see, e.g., Kennecott Copper Corp. v. FTC, 467 F.2d 67, 80 (10th
Cir. 1972), cert. denied, 416 U.S. 909 (1974)), demonstrate that no such
appearance has been created here. [3]

The speeches and congressional statements cited by respondents
can only be read as reflecting an underlying philosophy concerning
broad policy issues such as the role of professionals and professional
licensing in our society, competition in the health care sector of the
economy, and the problem of rising health care costs. These are
subjects currently of great interest to the public, and I believe that
open expression of my views to Congress and the public is an entirely
proper and essential part of my duties as Chairman. Cf. FTC v.
Cement Institute, 333 U.S. 683, 701 (1948); 15 U.S.C. 46(f). The
expression of views on such issues of policy which are, at most, only
generally related to the specific factual and legal issues involved in a
proceeding is not ground for disqualification. See, e.g., Hortonuville
dJoint School Dist. 1 v. Hortonville Educ. Ass’n, 426 U.S. 482, 493
(1976); Laird v. Tatum, 409 U.S. 824, 831 (1972) (memorandum of
Rehnquist, J.); United States v. Morgan, 313 U.S. 409, 421 (1941);
Skelly Oil Co. v. FPC, 375 F.2d 6, 18 (10th Cir. 1967), modified on
other grounds sub nom. Permian Basin Area Rate Cases, 390 U.S. 747
(1968). [4]

The statements cited by respondents also contain brief references
to previous actions taken by the Commission which were relevant to
issues on which I had been asked to testify.?2 I consider the
presentation to Congress and the public of information about the
nature and status of Commission activities to be one of the principal
responsibilities of the Chairman, and see nothing in my recitation of
such information which would constitute an appearance of prejudg-

1 In Association of Nat'l Advertisers, Inc. v. FTC, No. 78-1421 (D.D.C. 1978), appeal docketed, No. 79-1117 (D C.

Cir. Jan. 29, 1979), the district court reaffirmed the legal standnnis govermng lification in adjudicative
proceedings and adopted them in the context of a C i r ng p
7 See, e.g., & t Before Sub ittees of the Senate Comm)tbeea on Human and the Judiciary,

October 10, 1977, at 5.
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ment of this case. See Cinderella Career & Finishing Schools, Inc. v.
FTC, supra at 590.

At no time have I commented on the merits of the specific issues
raised in the pleadings in this adjudication. Rather, as part of a
catalogue of Commission activities in the health care field, 1 advised
the Congress that a complaint had issued challenging portions of the
AMA and ADA codes of ethics which “may unduly restrain
information about physician and dentist services.”? I then stated: [5]

Since these matters are currently in litigation, I hope you will understand why it
would not be appropriate for me to comment further about them.*

Respondents cite no statements in which I have expressed a view on
the merits of specific issues presented in this adjudication, such as
whether the respondent medical societies unlawfully restrict adver-
tising, solicitation, or other practices of their members.

I reiterate that I have not arrived at any conclusion regarding the
specific factual and legal questions involved in this case, nor have I
expressed any opinion as to ultimate liability. Rather, I am reserving
judgment until I have completed review of the record properly before
me. Accordingly, I decline to recuse myself from further participa-
tion in the proceeding. '

I will of course not participate in the Commission’s consideration
and ruling on the alternative motion addressed to the Commission.

INrTIAL DECISION BY »ERNES"I‘ G. BARNES, ADMINISTRATIVE
LAaw JUDGE

Nov. 13, 1978

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

On December 19, 1975, the Federal Trade Commission issued its
complaint in this matter charging the American Medical Association
(AMA), the Connecticut State Medical Society (CSMS), and the New
Haven County Medical Association, Inc. (NHCMA) with violations of
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45, by
restricting the ability of their members to advertise for and solicit
patients and to enter into various contractual arrangements in
connection with the offering of their services to the public. Specifi-
cally, the complaint charges that respondents have agreed with
others to prevent or hinder their members from:

3 Id. (emphasis added).

¢ Id
* Nor has AMA identified any statement 1 have made that r dents are “subject to the jurisdiction of the

Commission,” despite its effort to attribute such a conclusion to me, at page 7 of the motion.
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(1) Soliciting business, by advertising or otherwise;
(2) Engaging in price competition; and ,
(3) Otherwise engaging in competitive practices.

The complaint alleges that respondents and others have caused
the agreements to be published and circulated in a publication
entitled Principles of Medical Ethics, and they have enforced and
abided by the restrictions set forth therein. It is further alleged that,
as a result of these acts and practices:

(1) Prices of physician services have been stabilized, fixed, or
otherwise interfered with;

(2) Competition between medical doctors in the provision of such
services has been hindered, restrained, foreclosed and frustrated;
and

(3) Consumers have been deprived of information pertinent to the
selection of a physician and of the benefits of competition.

The aforesaid acts, practices and methods of competition are alleged
to be unfair and to constitute violations of Section 5 of the Federal
Trade Commission Act. [2]

On January 23, 1976, respondent AMA filed an answer admitting
that it has published and circulated a publication entitled the
Principles of Medical Ethics, but denying that it or its members are
engaged in business, and further denying it has otherwise violated
Section 5, as alleged. AMA also raised as an affirmative defense a
claim that AMA is not subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal
Trade Commission.. On January 26, 1976, respondents CSMS and
NHCMA filed answers making generally the same admissions and
denials as did AMA, and also raising the affirmative defense of lack
of jurisdiction. , -

Complaint counsel stated at the first prehearing conference in this
proceeding that the complaint had issued without any formal
precomplaint investigation. As a result, extensive discovery was
conducted with respondents and with state and local medical
societies located throughout the United States. On May 11, 1976, and
June 22, 1976, complaint counsel filed memoranda identifying
respondents’ ethical restrictions on contract practice, advertising,
and solicitation being challenged in the complaint. At a voluntary
meeting with respondents’ counsel on November 8, 1976, complaint
counsel further detailed the restrictions being challenged. The
transcript of that meeting was made a part of the record of the
prehearing conference held on November 18, 1976. Complaint
counsel has asserted that the complaint charges respondents with an
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agreement or conspiracy with others to restrict or restrain competi-
tion. Respondents deny there was an agreement or conspiracy, and
further deny that their acts and practices have prevented or
hindered competition. Respondents have also contended throughout
this proceeding that their ethical interpretations have changed in
recent years to comport with changing legal considerations so that
this proceeding is no longer in the public interest and should be
dismissed.

On March 24, 1976, AMA filed a Motion for Summary Decision
Dismissing the Complaint for Lack of Jurisdiction. CSMS and
NHCMA filed a similar motion on April 26, 1976.* These motions
were denied on April 26, 1976, and May 20, 1976, respectively, for the
reason, inter alia, that the facts involved were complex, many were
in dispute, and others were capable of any of several varying
inferences, making summary decision inappropriate. Requests for
interlocutory appeals were likewise denied.

On January 14, 1977, respondent AMA filed a Motion for
Certification to the Commission of AMA’s Motion to Reconsider
Issuance of the Complaint because of changed circumstances. [3]
Respondents CSMS and NHCMA filed a similar motion on January
24, 1977. On February 15, 1977, respondents’ motions were certified
to the Commission. The Commission, on April 26, 1977, denied said
motions for reconsideration.

Pretrial conferences were held on February 25, September 15 and
November 18, 1976, and August 2, and September 6, 1977. Adjudica-
tive hearings began September 7, 1977, and were concluded May 4,
1978, with 57 days of actual trial. Presentation of the case-in-chief in
Washington, D.C,, took 20 trial days, running from September 7
through October 19, 1977. Complaint counsel called 25 witnesses.
AMA’s defense, which was heard in Chicago, Illinois, Los Angeles,
California and Washington, D.C., began on November 28, 1977, and
ended on January 20, 1978. During AMA’s defense, 27 days of
hearings were held, and 522 witnesses testified. CSMS and NHCMA
called eight witnesses during the four days of their defense case,
which took place in New Haven, Connecticut, from January 23
through 26, 1978. Complaint counsel called three witnesser in their
rebuttal case, which ran from April 3 through 5, 1978. During the
surrebuttal hearings, which took place in Chicago, Illinois, from May
2 through 4, 1978, respondent AMA called seven witnesses.

On October 8, 1976, a subpoena duces tecum was issued to

! Respondents contended they were exempt from Federal Trade Commission jurisdiction as nonprofit
corporations, not organized for their own profit or that of their members.

2 Dr. William Ruhe, Senior Vice President, American Medical A iation, a defi witness, was recalled as a
witness at surrebuttal hearings on May 2, 1978.







